
Board of Directors: 

KRISTINA BREWER, President 
MICHAEL LEBOW, Vice President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 

PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE & AGENDA 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District will hold a Regular Board Meeting beginning at 5:00 P.M. 
on Tuesday April 9, 2024. The meeting will be held at the Temporary District Office 
Conference Room, 2300 Roosevelt Blvd., Channel Islands Beach, CA 93035. 

The agenda is as follows: 

A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
1. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the
purview of the District and which are not on the agenda. (Time limit 3 minutes per
speaker)

C. CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Approve the Agenda Order

2. Financial Reports:
a. Cash Disbursal & Receipt Report – March 2024

3. Minutes:
a. March 12, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
b. March 28, 2024, Facilities Committee Meeting

1



4. Authorize customer request for relief from water charges due to leaks on the
property consistent with Resolution 16-06:

Account Number Water Relief Sewer Relief Total Relief 
a. 00000159 $32.38 $80.58 $112.96 
b. 00000363 $194.22 $476.74 $670.96 
c. 08580-01 $356.65 $886.33 $1242.98 
d. 15441-03 $29.49 $100.72 $130.21 
e. 00000109 $90.77 $302.16 $392.93 

$2550.04 

D. ACTION CALENDAR:

1. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS FACILITY CONSTRUCTION
UPDATE
Recommendation:
1) Receive and File.

2. AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH COASTAL ARCHITECTS
Recommendation:
1) Consider and approve amendment to the agreement with Coastal Architects for an
amount not to exceed $33,436.

3. PROPOSED METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT RATE INCREASE
Recommendation:
1) Receive and File.

E. INFORMATION CALENDAR:

1. Report from Board Members of any meeting or conference where compensation for
attendance was received.

F. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:

G. GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS:

2



 
AGENDA POSTING CERTIFICATION 

 
  This agenda was posted Friday, April 5, 2024, by 5:00 PM. The agenda is posted at 

the District Office and two public notice bulletin boards, which are accessible 24 hours 
per day. The locations include:  

• Hollywood Beach School, 4000 Sunset Lane 
• Corner Store, 2425 Roosevelt Blvd.  
• Temporary District Office, 2300 Roosevelt Blvd. 

 
Agendas are also posted on the District’s website at www.cibcsd.com.  
 
 
Peter Martinez 
General Manager 
 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION, INCLUDING 
AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, IN ORDER TO ATTEND OR PARTICIPATE IN A MEETING, SHOULD 
BE MADE TO THE SECRETARY OF THE BOARD IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING TO ENSURE THE 
AVAILABILITY OF REQUESTED SERVICE OR ACCOMODATION. NOTICES, AGENDAS AND PUBLIC 
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE BOARD MEETINGS CAN BE MADE AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATIVE 
FORMAT UPON REQUEST. 

3



4



5



6



7



MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING, March 12, 2024 
 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

President Brewer called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. In attendance, Vice President 
Lebow, Director Bouchard, Director Nast, General Manager, Peter Martinez, General 
Counsel, Dennis McNulty, Clerk of the Board, Erika Davis, Office Manager, CJ Dillon, 
and Operations Manager Jesus (Chuy) Navarro. 

Director Debley was absent. 
 
B.      PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None. 
 

C.      CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Vice President Lebow made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar. President 
Brewer seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

 
Brewer, Lebow, Bouchard, Nast 4 - Yes 0 -No 
 
 
 
D. ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
1. SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION (SCADA) SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH XIO INC. (2-YEAR TERM) 

General Manager Martinez explained that in 2018 the District purchased and invested 
$150,000 in the XIO supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system. XIO has 
now implemented a new business model changing the terms of the service agreement. 
Staff ‘s recommendation is to approve the new service agreement with XIO in the 
amount of $30,324 for a 2-year term. There was no public comment. President Brewer 
made the motion to approve Staff’s recommendation. Vice President Lebow seconded 
the motion. The motion passed. 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Brewer: YES, Lebow: YES, Bouchard: YES, Nast: YES 4 - Yes 0 -No 
 
 

8



E. INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 
1. Annual Audit Letter 
 
Office Manager Dillon stated that this was an annual letter that the State required be 
distributed to the Board. 
 
2. Building Update 
 
General Manager Martinez showed an overview of the building progress. General 
Manager Martinez stated that for the project the Board approved 3.2 million and at this 
point the District has been billed $914,148. General Manager Martinez stated the 
project is at 28% completion.  
 
3. District Strategic Planning 
 
Using a PowerPoint presentation, General Marinez explained the District strategic 
planning process and provided a timeline (see attached). 
 
4. Report from Board Members for any meeting or conference where compensation for 
attendance was received. 
 
Vice President Lebow and Director Bouchard attended the Port Hueneme Water 
Agency (PHWA) meetings in January and February. Vice President Lebow and Director 
Bouchard reported that the first meeting was mostly Closed Session. The last meeting 
addressed reorganization and Vice President Lebow was elected President of PHWA.  
 
Director Nast attended Ventura Regional Sanitation District (VRSD) meetings and 
reported the discussion regarding implementation of a new SCADA system and 
suggested General Manager Martinez meet with the VRSD’s General Manager Chris 
Theisen to share information. 
 
F. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
Director Bouchard attended a Ventura County Air Pollution Control District Board 
meeting. The December 21st storm destroyed the shoreside power system in the Port of 
Hueneme which caused 40 million in damage. 

 
G.  GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 

General Counsel had no comment. 

General Manager Martinez said the City of Oxnard is conducting a sewer relocation 
project near Los Feliz Street and La Crescenta Street.  

9



General Manager Martinez reported that last week ten interviews took place to fill the 
two vacant Operations positions. General Manager Martinez said they were all great 
candidates, and a decision should be made by the end of this month. 

The Board Meeting adjourned at 5:35 p.m.  
 
_____________________________________________   
Kristina Brewer, President                                  

10



MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING, March 28, 2024 
 

 

A.    APPROVE THE FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA: 
 
The Facilities Committee Agenda was approved, and the meeting was called to order at 
3:00 p.m. In attendance Director Debley, Director Lebow, General Manager, Peter 
Martinez, Office Manager, CJ Dillon, Operations Manager, Jesus (Chuy) Navarro, Clerk 
of the Board, Erika Davis, Construction Manager Managing Principal & CEO S.L. 
Leonard & Associates, Inc., Sean Leonard, and Construction Manager Principal S.L. 
Leonard & Associates, Inc., Michael Iwuchukwu. 
 

B.      BUILDING IMPROVEMENT UPDATE:  

General Manager Martinez said that the construction began on October 2, 2023, and as 
of February 29, 2024, was at 28% completion. General Manager Martinez said the 
General Contractor updated the schedule with a revised completion date of October 28, 
2024, and presented the updated building project schedule. General Manager Martinez 
explained the costs encumbered to date, the payment process, and the details on two 
change orders. Facilities Committee members asked questions. Facilities Committee 
members requested that the Board regularly be kept informed with building updates at 
monthly meetings and asked that General Manager Martinez share with the Board 
details about the work the Operations team is doing to keep costs down. Discussion 
took place. Facilities Committee members will report back to the Board that Staff should 
continue to keep the Board informed with comprehensive building updates. 
 
 

The Facilities Committee Meeting adjourned at 3:49 p.m.  
 
_____________________________________________   
Sean Debley, Director                                  
 

11



 

Board of Directors: 
 
KRISTINA BREWER, President 
MICHAEL LEBOW, Vice President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting, April 9, 2024  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    Pete Martinez, General Manager  
Subject:    District Administration and Operations Facility Construction Update 
Item:    D-1  
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
  

1. Receive and file. 
 
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
I am pleased to provide you with an update on the construction progress for the District 
Administration and Operations Facility. Here are the key highlights: 
 
1. Current Progress and Timeline: Construction began on October 2, 2023, and is 28% 

complete as of February 29, 2024.  
 
2. Timeline: Based on the General Contractor’s (GC) baseline schedule and current critical path 

items the Project Team feels the GC is on schedule with a scheduled completion date of 
September 30, 2024. 

 
3. Budget Status: Through February the District has made 5 monthly progress payments for a 

total amount of $914,148 of the awarded amount of $3,222,327. In addition to the board 
approved contract amount, a 7% contingency of $225,000 was approved. According to 
Gordian, change orders account for approximately 8-14% of all capital construction dollars. 
Gordian provides solutions tailored to public sector construction needs for fast and flexible 
procurement of construction services. For over 30 years they have been helping state, local, 
and federal government agencies effectively manage building projects.  

 
4. Key Achievements: McGillivray has recently completed the rough framing of the 

Administration building. 
 
5. Change Orders:  

 
a. Change Order #1 $52,148.08  

i. COR01   Additional Concrete Paving 
ii. COR02   Additional Grading 
iii. COR4R1   Elevator Machine Room Concrete 
iv. COR05  Builders Risk Insurance 
v. COR06R1   Porous Concrete in lieu of Stormcrete Panels (Credit) 

12



vi. COR07   Delta 7 Electrical Changes 
vii. COR09   Building 2 Unforeseen Slab Demo and Pour Back 
viii. COR10  Delta 7 Mechanical Changes 
ix. COR11  Elevator Machine Room Door #19 

 
b. Change Order #2 - $42,399.83 – Operations Building (Reframing) 

 
6. Upcoming Milestones: GC is currently working on the rough plumbing, electrical, 

mechanical, HVAC, and fire sprinklers in the Administration building and has started reframing 
the operations building. 

 
7. Construction Management and Architect Agreements:  

 
a. S.L. Leonard & Associates – As of March 31, 2024 District has paid $29,842 of the 

Board approved $60,000 contract. 
b. Coastal Architects – District will be recommending to amend current agreement 

with Coastal Architects for an additional $33,436 for a revised total of $81,211. The 
additional services performed by Coastal Architects include: 

i. Revisions include addition of the elevator and elevator room, two separate 
plan revisions, two separate submittal applications, and plan check 
process. 

ii. Geotech Pavement Design and Report as required by Public Works 
iii. Landscape Plan Revisions as required due to new grading plans 
iv. Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing revisions: MEP revisions to elevator, 

heat pump, locations, and water heaters. 
v. MS4 compliance: revisions to plans to comply with public works, Plan 

check comments. 
vi. Trash enclosure wall extension. 
vii. Permit fees. 
viii. Grading plan revisions: changes to grading plan to comply with MS4 

compliance comments and for value engineering and simplification of new 
stormwater treatment systems. 

 
It is important to note that District staff has self-performed various tasks onsite and will continue 
to self-perform necessary work to help keep project costs at bay. The estimated savings to the 
District at this time is approximately $15,000-$20,000.  
 
 
 
 
 

13



 

Board of Directors: 
 
KRISTINA BREWER, President 
MICHAEL LEBOW, Vice President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting, April 9, 2024  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    Pete Martinez, General Manager  
Subject:    Amendment to Agreement with Coastal Architects 
Item:    D-2 
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
  

1. Consider and approve amendment to the agreement with Coastal Architects for an 
amount not to exceed $33,436. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No financial impact due to sufficient funding in the FY 2023-2024 Budget. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
On March 14, 2023, the Board approved an agreement for Architectural Services during 
construction of the District’s Administration and Operations Facility for an amount of $47,750 with 
Coastal Architects. The revised total including the proposed amendment will be $81,211.  
 
DISCUSSION:   
The additional architectural services include the following: 
 

i.Revisions include addition of the elevator and elevator room, two separate plan revisions, 
two separate submittal applications, and plan check process.  

ii.Geotech Pavement Design and Report as required by Public Works  
iii.Landscape Plan Revisions as required due to new grading plans  
iv.Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing (MEP) revisions: MEP revisions to elevator, heat 

pump, locations, and water heaters.  
v.MS4 compliance: revisions to plans to comply with public works, Plan check comments.  
vi.Trash enclosure wall extension.  
vii.Permit fees.  
viii.Grading plan revisions: changes to grading plan to comply with MS4 compliance 

comments and for value engineering and simplification of new stormwater treatment 
systems. 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

1. Amendment to Coastal Architects Agreement 

14



AMENDMENT NO. 1 

TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

between 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

and 

COASTAL ARCHITECTS 

 
 

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into on this day of April __, 2024 by and between  

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"District," and Coastal Architects, (“Consultant”) and is made with reference to the following: 

 
Architectural Services During Construction of the District Administration and 

Operations Facility 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, District entered into an agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”) on 

_______________. 

 

WHEREAS, District desires to amend said Agreement to provide funding for additional plan 

modifications and construction support services; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, District and Consultant agree as follows: 

 

1. Scope of Services. Consutlant agrees to perform those services which are described in the Scope 

of Work (Exhibit A) which is attached to, and incorporated herein, by this reference. 

 

2. Compensation. In return for providing the services described in Exhibit A which are to be performed 

by Consutlant, District agrees to pay, and Consutlant agrees to accept, compensation up to a 

maximum of thirty-three thousand, four hundred and thirty-six dollars ($33,436). 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above 

written. 

 

 
COAST ARCHITECTS  CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DISTRICT 

Signature: 
 

Signature: 

Name: 
 

Name: 

Title: 
 

Title: 

 

 
Contract Maximum Fee (prior to this amendment): $47,775 

Maximum Fee this Amendment: $33,436 

Revised Contract Maximum Fee (including this amendment): $81,211 

March 14, 2023

15



 
 

 
 

    

April 3, 2024 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Attn: Pete Martinez 
Via email 
 

Re: Fee Proposal for Professional Architectural Extra Services for the District HQ Facility located at 353 
Santa Monica Dr, Oxnard, Ca 93035 

We propose to provide VE Change Order Services for the duration of Construction as itemized below. 

Extra Services 

  Additional contract administration services include: 

1.  Revisions to the elevator include the removal of the elevator, and the addition of the elevator, two 
separate plans, revisions, two separate submittal applications, and plan check processes. 

2.  Geotech Pavement Design & Report as required by public works  

3.  Landscape Plan Revisions as required due to new grading plans 

4.  Mech, Elec & Plumb Revisions: MEP revisions to elevator, heat pump, locations, and water heaters 

5.  MS4 compliance: revisions to plans to comply with public works. Plan check comments. 

6.  Trash Enclosure wall extension 

7.  Permit Fees 

8.  Grading Plan Revisions: changes to grading plan to comply with MS four compliance comments, 
and for price reduction and simplification of new stormwater treatment systems 

 

 

  

1567 Spinnaker Dr 
Suite 204 
Ventura, Ca 93001 
T: 805-985-7654 

16



COMPENSATION: 

1.    $7,635 

2    $ 860 

3.    $ 2,620 

4.    $ 6,355 

5.    $ 1,045 

6.    $ 600 

7.    $ 2,121 

8.     $12,200 

 

TOTAL FEE  $33,436.00 
 

 

FEE NOTES: 

1. Please note that the fee noted above is based on hours to complete each task during the 
course of industry-standard construction.  If unknown elements or issues arise, or if General 
Contractor submits excessive RFI’s as agreed to by the Construction Management team 
(CM), and through no fault of ours, then additional hours may be required to complete. If 
it appears that we might exceed the stipulated amounts, we will notify you and proceed 
on an hourly base per the rate schedule attached. 

 

2. You will be billed monthly as services noted above are performed and expenses incurred. 
Payment is due 30 days from receipt of invoice by either Construction Management Team 
or CIBCSD. Any reviews by CM Team is included in this 30 day billing cycle. 

3. Hourly rates to complete any additional work or exclusion items are as follows: 

  Architects      $ 195.00 

  Senior Designer     $ 170.00 

  Associate Architects     $ 145.00 

  Senior Project Manager    $ 135.00 

  Job Captain      $ 120.00 

  Drafting       $   95.00 

All outside costs, services, and expenses, including without limitation, blueprinting, deliveries, 
sign postings, etc. will be billed through us at a rate of cost-plus fifteen percent (15%).  
Outside costs and expenses are not included in the fee. 

 

 
  

17



SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 

A. If the basic services covered by this letter have not been completed within fourteen (14) 
months of the date of this letter, through no fault of ours, extended time for completion and 
fees charged will be subject to renegotiation. 

B. The attached General Conditions are incorporated herein. 

 
 
Sincerely,  

   
    
  

  

Jeff B. Zook 
Owner / Architect 
CA License No. C27561 

  

 
  

18



 

Board of Directors: 
 
KRISTINA BREWER, President 
MICHAEL LEBOW, Vice President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting, April 9, 2024  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    Pete Martinez, General Manager  
Subject:    Proposed Metropolitan Water District Rate Increase 
Item:    D-3  
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
  

1. Receive and file. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No financial impact at this time.   
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District’s current water portfolio is comprised of approximately 80% groundwater in which we 
receive from the United Water Conservation District and 20% imported water via Calleguas 
Mutual Water District. These two water sources are blended at the Port Hueneme Water Agency 
Facility and then delivered to the District.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
I am writing to inform you of a significant development regarding potential rate increases from the 
Metropolitan Water District (MWD). As per recent communications, there is a possibility of a 
13.6% rate increase effective January 1, 2025, followed by an additional 8% increase January 1, 
2026 from Metropolitan Water District, which would then be passed through via Calleguas Mutual 
Water District. The key drivers of the proposed increase include the need to replenish reserves 
to meet minimum requirements, historically low water sales (lowest in 50 years), inflation, and 
pending large capital investments necessary to maintain reliability. 
 
These proposed rate hikes have implications for our District and its ratepayers. In response, the 
District has taken proactive measures by submitting an opposition letter for the record concerning 
the proposed rate increases. A copy of this opposition letter is attached for your reference. 
 
Furthermore, I would like to emphasize that the District remains actively engaged in this matter. 
We are closely monitoring the situation and will provide further updates as developments unfold. 
It's important to note that the final impact of these rate increases will not be determined until June, 
pending the approval of Calleguas's budget and rate-setting process. 
 
Please review the attached opposition letter and feel free to reach out if you require any additional 
information or clarification on this matter. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

1. MWD Rate Increase Opposition Letter 
19



20



21


	04-09-2024  Draft Regular Board Meeting Agenda
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	NOTICE & AGENDA

	March 2024 Financials
	03-12-24 Regular Board Meeting Minutes Draft (1) (1)8593 (1)
	03-28-24 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes
	Staff Report - CI 401 Update
	Staff Report - Coastal Architects Amendment  (2)
	Coastal Architects Amendment_4-4-24 (003)
	CIBCSD CA SERVICES - COASTAL - extra services 3.pdf
	Extra Services
	COMPENSATION:
	1.    $7,635
	2    $ 860
	3.    $ 2,620
	4.    $ 6,355
	5.    $ 1,045
	6.    $ 600
	7.    $ 2,121
	8.     $12,200
	TOTAL FEE  $33,436.00
	FEE NOTES:
	SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS:
	A. If the basic services covered by this letter have not been completed within fourteen (14) months of the date of this letter, through no fault of ours, extended time for completion and fees charged will be subject to renegotiation.
	B. The attached General Conditions are incorporated herein.



	Staff Report - MWD Proposed Rate Increase
	MWD04052024 (1)



